Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
September 8, 2015

Lol
jei~ties

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was
Tuesday, September 8, 2015 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Fowler, Commissioner Casey,
Commissioner Salter, and Commuissioner Warren

MEMBERS ABSENT: aone

OTHERS PRESENT: Carolyn Braly - Town Manager, Mike & Susan Dorsey, Cliff Braly
and the attorneys for Wayfarer's Cove Builders LLC & JOB Holding LLC: Tom Ward & Jay
Salsman.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order with a moment
of silence and led everyone in the U.S. Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the September 8, 2015 agenda.
Commissioner Warren moved to approve the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the August 11, 2015 minutes.
Commissioner Salier moved to approve the minutes of the August 11, 2015 meeting. All
ayes.

Public comments; None

Public Hearing on proposed amendments to the Town of Minnesott Beach Planned Unit
Development & Zoning map:

Mayor Potter asked for motion to go into Public Hearing on proposed amendments to the
Town of Minnesott Beach Planned Unit Development & Zoning map. Commissioner Warren
so moved. All ayes.

Mayor Potter stated that this is a hearing not a forum. It s for comments by those present to
the Board of Commissioners. The hearing is specifically on Section 151.390 (B) of the
Planned Unit Overlay in the Code of Ordinances and the Town Zoning Map.

Mayor Potter read into the record the Ordinance to Amend the Unified Development
Ordinance and Zoning Map which is incorporated by reference and hereby made a part of
these minutes. It would become affected once it is adopted. Mayor Potter asked for
cominents concerning this change in the UDO.

Michael Dorsey and his wife, Susan, representing South Lake Property Owners, said they are
in favor of the proposed amendment, so the South Lake property will return to the R-15
zoning. He said the owners of the property purchased it as R-15 and knew what it was and
requested the Commissioners change it to the PUD overlay. Plans for the South Lake
properties were refused by the Commissioners in 2007. Nothing has been done since that
time. Mr. Dorsey said the Commissioners had been fair to the owners, but it s now prudent



tor the Commissioners to remove the UDO.

Mayor Potter introduced Mt Jay Salsman. Mr. Salsman thanked the Commissioners for
entertaining them. He said he was accompanied by his law partner, Tom Ward. He said they
were here representing JOB Holdings LLC and Wayfarer's Cove Builders LLC. Mr. Salsman
passed out two NC dredging permits for the marina, a map of the property and the deed to the
property granted to JOB Holding LL.C. He said these two entities, JOB Holdings LLC and
Waytarer's Cove Builders LLC own almost all of the properties in PUD overlay. Wayfarer's
Cove Builders LLC owns the land around South Lake and JOB Holdings LL.C owns most of
the rest. JOB Holdings LLC's properties have all been subdivided and have recorded plats.
He asked that the Commissioners vote in opposition to the proposed amendments. The
reason for that is the two entities have a vested right. He said under NC law a property
owner can obtain what is called a vested right which can prevent, in some circumstances,
zoning changes being made to the detriment of the property. There are several ways under
the statutes and the common law of North Carolina in our court systems that vested rights can
be obtained. These include filing a site plans that are approved by a town board or
commissioners, or obtaining permits and making substantial financial investments in the
properties. He said it really comes down to fairness. If a property owner obtains property
with the understanding that certain zoning is in place or undertakes certain expenses in the
line of certain zoning than it is really unfair to go ahead and change that zoning when they
have put all of that money up and taken these steps on the zoning. JOB Holdings LLC
obtained their property through a foreclosure in 2011. It is closest to the river. Wayfarer's
Cove has owned this undivided piece of property since 2005, Site plans have been proposed
and approved, but nothing has been built as of yet. Ten of the properties that were owned by
JOB Holdings LLC were sold and then purchased back because it was not feasible to go
forward at that time. But, the essence of their position and why they asked the
commissioners to vote against the amendment is they do believe they have a vested right: 1.
They have spent nearly 1 million dollars on this property, not accounting for purchase price,
on ihings like engineering fees, permitting, marketing fees related to the expected
development of this property. 2. They have obtained permits issued by the State of North
Carolina. Once JOB Holdings acquired this property in 2011, they asked the State of North
Carolina to transfer over the prior development permits that had been issued. The State of
North Carolina transferred the permits. The two development permits were included with the
packet of information to the commissioners. He said if you notice on the bottom left of those
permits, they are valid through December 31, 2019. Mr. Salsman said these permits are still
good for another 4 years. He said the State of North Carolina has given them to develop this
property pursuant to the plan that has been filed. Mr. Salsman said his clients believe they
have vested right based on some of the things he had just discussed and ask that the zoning
be kept in place and specifically have the PUD overlay kept in place and not revoked. He
respectfully requested the Commissioners vote against the proposed amendment. He also
said on behalf of his clients that they would be more than willing to meet with the
Commissioners to discuss how to handle the development of these properties moving
forward in a way that is economically beneficial to the Town and in a way that makes sense
with the vision of development that is in place for Minnesott Beach. He thanked the
Commissioners for their time. Mayor Potter thanked Mr. Salsman.



Mayor Potter asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing and return to regular session.
Commissioner Warren so moved. All ayes.

Mayor Potter asked for discussion of the proposed amendments and taking possible action.
Commissioner Fowler said he'd like to talk with the Town's attorney before voting because he
was not aware of the state permits and discuss with him some of the options might be. He
said it was interesting that the developers were willing to talk with the Commissioners in a
way to move forward so everyone will be happy with it. In the past that has not happened.
Commissioner Fowler said we need to meet with the Town's attorney and present him the
information gotten tonight. Commissioner Warren asked what new information available.
Commissioner Fowler said the transferred permits and vested rights. Commissioner Warren
agreed with Commissioner Fowler in that it is better to be safe than sorry. Commissioner
Fowler said he wanted to move in favor of our town, which s the town's primary focus but
we have a responsibility to follow NC laws. He moved to postpone action on the
amendments to the UDO and the Zoning Map to October 13, 2015 at 7:00pm. All ayes.

Mr. Salsman said he would make his clients available anytime the Commissioners would like
to talk with them. Mayor Potter said we want to be very fair to your clients, but at the same
time our desire is to maintain the integrity of the Town as primarily a single family
development situation throughout the Town and the PUD overrules that. The desire of the
adjacent land owners is to return to the R-15 zoning. Mayor Potter said decisions would be
made after secing the Town's attorney. Mr. Salsman said his client wants a less adversarial
refationship than had been experienced in the past. Mr. Dorsey asked if Mr. Saisman's client
would object to having a South Lakes Homeowners Association representative present at the
meetings. Mr. Salsman assured him it would be fine.

Commissioner Fowler moved that Mayor Potter and he meet with the Town's attorney to go
over the issues brought up concerning the PUD and Zoning Map. All ayes.

Town Manager Report: There is one new zoning application from Tim & Debra McCoy to
move a trailer into the mobile home park. The Town has hired a Town Clerk. Her name is
Denise Meyerson. The Board of Commissioners approved her hiring and waived her
attendance at the BOC meetings.

Commissioner Fowler asked about updating the Town Code of Ordinances. That will be
done when/if the passage of the amendments to the UDO and Zoning map takes place.

Each of the Commissioners was sent a copy of the preliminary audif report via email.

Planning Board Report: Chairman Humenik was not in attendance. Commissioner
Fowler reported there was not a September Planning Board meeting.

Old Business:

Bland Road update: Commissioner Salter reported nothing had been done since the last
meeting except the debris has been hauled off by our maintenance. Commissioner Salter said
he has contracted to to have the large tree stump ground up for $180.00 Commissioner



Fowler asked how much was spent. Commissioner Salter $3500.00 was spent to date.
Mavyor Potter thanked Commissioner Salter for all of his work and efforts.

Commissioner Salier reported the tree limibs hanging over Hardison and Country Club Drive
have been trimmed.

Financial Report — Commissioner Warren reported the town's current assets are: First
Citizen's Bank Checking $3,419.26; First Citizen's MM $238,242 85; First South Bank &
Savings $156,437.71; Petty Cash $50.00; North Carolina Management Trust i1s $200,627.67.
The town currently has 3 CDs at First South Bank & Savings (one for $20,542.96, one for
$20,119.55 and one for $20,000.00). Total assets to the Town are a total of $686,266.08.
The balance sheet is in excellent shape at this time.

Town Manager reminded everyone that the $20,000 CD will be maturing October 11, 2015.
Commissioner Warren moved to toll over the CD maturing in October for 18 months or less
at the best rate. All ayes.

Town Manager will get rates and times info.

Miscellaneous Business: Commissioner Salter asked about having the Town Clean up in
November. It will be discussed at the next meeting.

Commissioner Warren moved to adjourn. All ayes.

S

_— . P i
oY // / z 4 15 Ader—"

Denise Meyerson, Town C)érk



